This chapter sets out the very earliest days of the Western Australian University Regiment and shows the reader how modest a beginning this Regiment had.  Few who served the unit in these times are in a position to add to the story of the early days and the writer must rely on existing printed matter to bring out the story.  The organisation of the Australian Citizen’s Military Forces provides for the establishment of University Regiments in all mainland States with the exception of the Northern Territory, which has no University.  For many years, Western Australia was the only mainland States which had not raised a University Regiment.  This was done four years after the end of the World War.  On 22 April 1949, an establishment known as Perth University Regiment was raised in Western Command.  This, however, was strictly incorrect nomenclature, as pointed out by the University, and the Regimental title was changed in August of that year to Western Australian University Regiment.

The original Training Depot was a large, iron-roofed building in the southeast corner of the University grounds at Crawley, originally erected as part of the flying boat base and used during the latter part of the War.  This building now forms part of the Anatomy School of the Medical Faculty.  From the Unit’s inception, and until October 1951, the 16th Infantry Battalion fostered the Regiment, the Adjutant in the same capacity for both Units.  Flight Lieutenant A.H Morton, DFC, of the RAAF Reserve, a lecturer in the Physics Department of the University, was appointed to the Reserve of Officers, Australian Military Forces and promoted Temporary Captain on 25 April 1949.  He was appointed to administer command of the Unit which was placed on a Lower Establishment of one Rifle Company.

The Unit was provided with an Australian Regular Army Cadre of one Warrant Officer Class Two, Instructor, a Corporal Clerk and a Private Storeman.  In January 1950, WO2 H.C. Vaisey and Corporal F. Perkins arrived to take up duties.  At this time the Regimental strength consisted of one officer and seven other ranks. 

By August of that year (ie: 1950) the Unit had grown by only a further thirteen other ranks.  As may be seen, enlistments were few and resulted in the main from the personal efforts of Captain Morton.  Recruiting drives were held, one featuring a display of weapons and equipment at the University.  Later, in March 1951, an impressive demonstration of the capabilities of DUKWs, Australian built Machine Gun Carriers and the PIAT was staged for the new students.  During the afternoon this demonstration was attended by the then General Officer Commanding Western Command. Major General J.E. Whitelaw, CB, CBE.  By May 1951 the Regimental strength was one officer and thirty four other ranks.

Two platoons were first raised at the University and then, in July 1951. a third platoon was raised at the Teachers’ Training College, Claremont. This platoon was commanded by Captain H.J.A. Ford, Sociology lecturer at the College, Although the Teachers’ College platoon was essentially part of the Regiment its training was conducted at Claremont, Young men attending the Teachers’ College provided a fine recruiting potential and the third platoon was composed of twenty nine volunteers.  Later as National Service men swelled the ranks the Claremont detachment became ‘B’ Company with three platoons.

Variety seems to have been the keynote in the early clays in respect of Camps for between February 1950 and February 1951 three 14‑day Camps were held at Rottnest Island, Swanbourne Rifle Range and Guildford Camp. These camp dates were arranged so that they came either following the completion of final exams in late November or in the early part of the year before the study period began. These dates were the most suitable as no time was lost by the students either from their studies or between closure and opening of the University. It also allowed them an unbroken period in which to follow some vacational occupation, this latter being vital as a large number of students depended on money thus earned to assist them financially during the following year’s study.

The following transfers were made:

Capt A.H. Morton, DFC
Transferred to 16128 Inf Bn

Lt R.T. Jones
Transferred to
28 Inf Bn

Lt M.J. Hood
Transferred to
11/44 Inf Bn

Lt A.B.Lawrence
Transferred to
28 Inf Bn

Lt J.F.  Hoare
Appointed to
28 Inf Bn

Lt B.J,  Parkes
Appointed to
16 Inf Bn

The Regiment suffered a loss when Lieutenant Colonel Sublet was forced, by pressure of work in his civil occupation, to relinquish command on 28 February 1953. Major W.R. Bray who had been seconded to WAUR as Senior Officer Instructor for the OCTU was appointed to administer Command of the Regiment from 1 March 1953 and was later appointed Commanding Officer with the rank of Lieutenant Colonel on 1 July 1954

In August 1951, the establishment was increased by the addition of an Officer Cadet Training Company, allowing for one hundred and forty four members as students with a staff of six officers, two Majors and four Captains, as instructors. These officers were seconded from their parent units to this task. Vacancies for Cadets were available to all Western Command Citizen Military Force Units all nominees being subject to a psychology test; Lieutenant Colonel F.H. Sublet, DSO, MCI who had commanded 16th Infantry Battalion, Cameron Highlanders of Western Australia from 1948 was appointed to command on 9 August 1951.

Acknowledgment should here be made of the work of Captain Morton who had guided the unit through a very delicate stage until, at the time of relinquishing his command, it was firmly established with a recruitment of two officers and sixty three other ranks. It is interesting to compare this figure, one almost identical, with the recruitment figures of the Oxford University Officer Training Corps, a British Territorial Army unit which, for the benefit of readers in Australia,, should not be confused with the Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Light Infantry with which the Western Australian University Regiment was later allied, Where as the Oxford University Officer Training Corps at this time commanded by Lieutenant Colonel A.D. Taylor, DSO, MC, had an establishment catering for Armour, Artillery,, Signals and Infantry training WAUR was solely an Infantry Unit.

To cope with the additional work involved in the training and administration of the Officer Cadet Training Company, the Australian Regular Army Cadre was increased to one officer, the Adjutant/Quartermaster who was Major G. Wright, two Warrant Officers class Two as instructors, a Corporal Clerk and a Private Storeman. A new Lower Establishment was issued.

In October 1951, the first intake of Officer Training Company arrived for the fourteen months course. Some students, for private reasons or reasons submitted by their Units failed to complete the course, but in all, forty one qualified in subjects ‘A’ and ‘B’ and fourteen in Subject ‘C’

The first members of the Unit to receive their Commissions were Lieutenants R.T. Jones and M.N. Heenan when they were promoted in November 1951, Mr. Heenan left the Regiment to enlist in the Australian Regular Army.

On 17 March 1951, the National Service Act became law so that by the time these young men who had served in the first NS intake at Swanbourne came to WAUR they swelled the existing ranks by an additional seventy six, On 1 June 1952 the Regimental strength was six officers and one hundred and seventy two other ranks.

Appointments to Commissioned rank were not very frequent, Lt M.J. Hood and Lt A.B. Lawrence gained their Commissions on 22 October 1952 and 17 April 1953 respectively. Later, in December, Lieutenants B.J. Parkes and J.F. Hoare received Commissioned rank, the latter being the first National Serviceman of the Western Australian University Regiment to have this distinction.

January 1953 witnessed the arrival of a new intake of Members for the Officer Cadet Training Company, this time attached for training and administration only; whereas the first group attended WAUR camps this new

group attended the camps of their parent unit, This course which lasted for six months was the last Officer Cadet Training course conducted. The strength of the course waned from thirty two members in January to

twenty four members in June. Of these twenty four qualified for subject ‘A’ but only four for Subject ‘B’

The sudden influx of National Servicemen had created a serious shortage of officers throughout Western Command, and, for that matter, throughout Australia. In July 1953, the Regiment was deprived of its position as an Officer Training Unit and, to overcome this scarcity of Officers.

Note: The dropping off of attendances and the lack of numbers passing the Subject ‘B’ for 1st Appointment may be attributed to the influx of National Service Conscripts and the consequent wane in interest shown by members, many with war service, who now saw the “fun” go out of part time soldiering.

When the second intake of National Servicemen was absorbed into the Unit it included Pharmaceutical, Architectural and Engineering students from the Perth Technical College in addition to the students of the University and Claremont Teachers’ Training College. A new Lower Establishment was issued and a new Rifle‑Company, ‘B’ Company Teachers’ College, and Regimental Headquarters formed. On 31 July 1953 the strength of the Regiment was:


Officers
Other Ranks

National Servicemen
1
187

Citizen Military Force
6 
22

                                                                                           7
  209

Just prior to the Annual Camp in March 1954, the appointment of five new officers was notified. They were:

Lieutenant  J.G. Collins
appointed on 19 February 1954

Lieutenant  F.G. Beyer
appointed on 19 February 1954

Lieutenant  A.J. Anderson
appointed on 19 February 1954

Lieutenant  J,C. Balalas
appointed on 19 February 1954

Lieutenant  L.H. Little          appointed on 4 March
1954

Nine officers and two hundred and fifty nine other ranks marched into Camp, these included attached personnel from Adelaide, Melbourne and Queensland University Regiments, who had left their home state for study and returned for the long vacation. The strength of the unit and the degree of co‑ordinated training was not yet at a pitch to attempt a battalion exercise so two 2 day exercises were conducted, each company augmenting the numbers of the other. The first exercise was carried out by ‘B’ Company which pursued its enemy from Clackline to Northam with periodic skirmishes finalising in a dawn attack, During the preceding night, walkie‑talkie wireless sets not only brought in reports from patrols and posts, but musical interludes from Radio Indonesia.

The Exercise conducted by ‘A’ Company was similar in aim with the exception that the culmination was a night withdrawal over ground liberally covered by rabbit warrens, barbed‑wire fences and slumbering cattle.

It was a successful camp, but was hampered a little in the latter stages by the gradual march out of the 1952 intake of National Servicemen.  This was brought about by the reduction from one hundred and seventy six days to one hundred and forty days training to be done by National Service Trainees with their Citizen Military Force Units. It had not been possible to adjust the Home Training syllabus and so avoid this disruption. Altogether, 58 men who had completed their NS obligation chose to be placed on the inactive list.  By 1 July 1954 the Regiment had:



Officers
Other Ranks


National Servicemen
2
168


Citizen Military Force
7
12

9 180

